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Forward-looking statement
Statements in this report that describe the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions 
of the future may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the 
meaning of the applicable securities laws and regulations. 
The Company cautions that such statements involve risks 
and uncertainty and that actual results could diff er materially 
from those expressed or implied. Important factors that 
could cause diff erences include SEBI policies & changes, 
Govt. regulations, market conditions, competition, change 
in opportunities available and change in STT and direct tax 
laws. 
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Listing Ceromony held at BSE 
on 13th March, 2018
BSE Limited, with its 140 year old heritage of pioneering equity culture in Asia, and your company jointly celebrated 
the listing ceremony of your company on 13th March, 2018. The event was attended by key offi  cials from BSE, the 
Merchant Banker, Market Maker, and board members and enthusiastic team members of your company.
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Corporate Social 
Responsibility
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PARIVAAR EDUCATION SOCIETY 
Parivaar is a humanitarian organization 
inspired by the spiritual and humanistic 
ideals of Sri Ramakrishna and Swami 
Vivekananda. For last 15 years, Parivaar 
has worked towards the total care and 
overall development of children who 
are highly vulnerable to exploitation, 
victimization and trafficking, including 
orphans, street children, abandoned 
children, and extremely impoverished 
children from tribal areas. It also 
conducts many more humanitarian 
activities for the destitute and uncared, 
including elderly and shelterless.

In Bengal Parivaar has two residential 
educational institutions – Parivaar 
Vivekananda Sevashrama for Boys and 
Parivaar Sarada Teertha for girls. With 
over 1800 resident children, these are 
West Bengal’s largest free residential 
institutions for children from deprived 
and destitute backgrounds. Parivaar 
provides residential living, education, 
and physical activity in a loving and 
caring atmosphere for boys and girls 
from early age of 5 till their higher 
education (university level graduation 
or employability programs).

Parivaar has been the recipient of the 
2011 National Award for Child Welfare 
from the President of India, the highest 
recognition by the Government of India.

SAMARITAN HELP MISSION
Samaritan Help Mission was founded 
by Mr. Mamoon Akhtar. 

His Samaritan Mission School in the 
slums of Tikiapara, West Bengal plants 
the joy of education in the hearts 
of nearly 3000 children providing 
developmental opportunities to the 
poor and needy slum children with 

emphasis on young girls. The children 
are provided quality education and  
life skill education in order to explore 
and develop their hidden talents 
and capacities in order to achieve 
secured livelihood so as to lead 
productive and fruitful life with self-
esteem and self-dignity and to rise 
above the narrow consideration of 
caste creed, community religion or 
language and to build a strong nation.
 https://samaritanhelpmission.org/

FRIENDS OF TRIBALS SOCIETY

Friends of Tribals Society (FTS) was 
conceived out of the idea that the tribal 
population are much exploited due to 
their lack or no access to education. But 
there was difficulty in implementing 
the idea due to the location of the 
schools. Establishing schools in the 
towns would not have solved the 
problem. The tribal children, who 
mostly reside in remote villages, would 
not be able to access schools in distant 
towns. Inspired by Vivekananda’s 
enlightening philosophy that if a child 
cannot go to school, the school should 
go to the child, Ekal Vidyalaya took 
shape to embody one village – one 
school – one teacher concept. 

 FTS runs One Teacher School (OTS) 
or Ekal Vidyalaya, which imparts 
non-formal primary education to 
children between 6 and 14 years 
of age. OTS is typically comprises 
of 25 – 30 children of classes I – III. 
The duration of the classes is about 
three hours.

 FTS runs more than 35,000 OTSs 
in 34 states and along with other 
associates are running more than 
60,000 OTS in India and Nepal.

We create value for our communities through multiple initiatives as part of our CSR 
programmes. Company is honoured to be supporting these Noble Organizations:
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Awards and Appreciation
Of many awards and testimonials, EISL has been on the growth curve for quite some time now. Awards and appreciation 
from major organizations like NSDL for being the top performer in active accounts, National Stock Exchange of India 
for being amongst the top members, NSE for excellence in fi eld of work has added feathers on our hat. 
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Directors’ Report

To the Members,

EAST INDIA SECURITIES LIMITED

The Board of Directors present the Twenty Third Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of East 
India Securities Limited (“Company”)  for the year ended 31st March 2018.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
 The key fi nancial parameters of the Company’s performance during the year under review are given in the table below:-

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
 The revenue from operations for FY 2017-18 at Rs. 44.86 Crores increased by 20% over the previous year where as total 

income witnessed 39 percent growth from Rs 44.50 crore to Rs 61.97 Crore. During the year, your company has earned 
Rs 17.11 crore from sale of investment. In the year under review, despite adverse market scenario, your company has 
managed excellent growth and the Directors are hopeful that the company will do better in current year. Profi t before 
tax at Rs. 50.97 Crores refl ected a robust growth of 49 % over previous year; though higher income on sale of investments 
contributed 29% of this, the higher growth was also due to higher core revenue, improved operating performance and 
good cost management. We had a smooth transition into the GST era with the rates on most of our services being in line 
with the erstwhile regime and softwares have been restructured wherever necessary to make it effi  cient and compliant 
to the GST requirements.

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Income

Revenue from Operations       44,86,20,459.75      37,36,54,849.62

Other  Income       17,11,36,807.35        7,13,87,864.28

Total Income       61,97,57,267.10     44,50,42,713.90

Employee Benefi ts Expenses         3,70,21,047.00       3,88,04,572.00

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses           26,11,930.63          13,22,150.00

Other Expenses         7,03,80,768.44       6,42,86,180.53

Total Expenses       11,00,13,746.07    10,44,12,902.53

Profi t/(Loss) before tax      50,97,43,521.03    34,06,29,811.37

Less:  Current tax        8,11,34,034.00      6,31,68,141.49

Add/(Less):  Deferred tax Assets/(Liability)              4,03,081.69              (89,958.07)

Profi t/(Loss)  for the period after tax 42,90,12,568.72 27,73,71,711.81

Earnings Per Share 

(a)   Basic 116.99 75.64

(b)   Diluted 116.99 75.64

(Amount in `)
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3. DIVIDEND
 The Directors of the Company do not recommend dividend for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2018. If one takes a 

view on total returns on shareholder funds, dividend is not tax-effi  cient as it entails dividend distribution tax under the 
current laws.

4. SHARE CAPITAL
 During the year under review your company entered into the capital markets with a public issue through Off er for Sale 

of 10,08,000 (Ten Lakh Eight Thousand only) Shares on BSE SME Platform. The issue received good response. The equity 
shares have been listed and traded on the SME Platform of BSE Ltd from 13th March, 2018. Subsequent to the IPO there 
is no change in the issued, subscribed and paid up capital of your company as it was off er for sale by promoters of the 
company.

 The Authorized Share Capital of The company is Rs 5,00,00,000/- divided into 50,00,000/- Equity Shares of face value of 
Rs 10/- each. There is no change in the authorized share capital of the company during the year under review.

 The Issued, Paid up & Subscribed Share Capital of The company is Rs 3,66,70,000/- divided into 36,67,000 Equity Shares 
of face value of Rs 10/- each. There is no change in the Issued, Paid up & Subscribed Share Capital of the company during 
the year under review.

 The company has not issued any equity shares with diff erential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise during the year 
under review.

 A) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

  The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review

 B) SWEAT EQUITY

  The company has not issued any sweat equity during the year under review

 C) BONUS SHARES

  The company has not issued any bonus shares during the year under review

5. LISTING OF SHARES
 The equity shares of Company are listed on the SME Platform of BSE Limited, 25th Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai – 400 001 from 13th March, 2018.

6. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES
 During the period under review, the Company has entered into Tripartite Agreement with the depositories, on February 

15, 2018 with National Securities Depository Limited and on February 20, 2018 with Central Depository Service (India) 
Limited for providing Demat facility to its Shareholders. For the purpose, the company has appointed M/s Cameo 
Corporate Services Pvt Ltd as RTA. The company’s 100% Shares are dematerialized.

7. DEPOSITS
 Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 

made there under.

8. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
 The Company had proposed to transfer a sum of INR Thirty Crores to General reserves out of accumulated profi t. The 

company’s total reserves stand at Rs 300.33 crores as on March 31, 2018 compared to Rs 257.43 crores last year, thus 
increasing by 16.7%.
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9. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
 The Company has no subsidiaries or joint ventures.

10. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
 Thirteen meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year and one meeting of each committee were held, 

which includes Audit committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders relationship Committee 
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

  CHANGES IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name of Director Date of Change in Composition Details of Change

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Shroff 01-02-2018 Redesignated as Managing Director 

Mr. Vivek Agarwal 01-02-2018 Redesignated as Chairman

Mr. Tapas Kumar Maity 20-02-2018 Redesignated as Whole Time Director

Mr. Tarit Kumar Bhaumik 20-02-2018 Appointed as Additional Independent Director

Mrs. Kirti Kothari 20-02-2018 Appointed as Additional Independent Director

Mr. Adrish Ray* 20-02-2018 Appointed as Additional Independent Director

 *  Adrish  Ray has tendered his resignation on 4th May 2018

  CHANGES IN COMPOSITION OF COMMITTES ARE AS FOLLOWS

  AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name of Director Designation Appointment Chairman/Member

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Shroff Managing Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mr. Tarit Kumar Bhaumik Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Chairman

Mr. Adrish Ray* Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mrs. Kirti Kothari Non Executive Independent Director 10-05-2018 Member

 *  Adrish Ray has tendered his resignation on 04th May 2018

  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Name of Director Designation Appointment Chairman/Member

Mr. Tarit Kumar Bhaumik Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Chairman

Mr. Adrish Ray* Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mrs. Kirti Kothari Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mr. Vivek Agarwal Non Executive Director 10-05-2018 Member

 *Adrish Ray has tendered his resignation on 04th May 2018

  SHAREHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Name of Director Designation Appointment Chairman/Member

Mr. Tarit Kumar Bhaumik Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Chairman

Mr. Adrish Ray* Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mrs. Kirti Kothari Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mr. Vivek Agarwal Non Executive Director 10-05-2018 Member

 *   Adrish Ray has tendered his resignation on 4th May 2018
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  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Name of Director Designation Appointment Chairman/Member

Mr. Tarit Kumar Bhaumik Non Executive Independent Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Shroff Managing Director 20-02-2018 Member

Mr. Vivek Agarwal Non Executive Director 20-02-2018 Chairman 

  KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

  The Key Managerial Personnel as per the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 appointed during 
the fi nancial year are mentioned below:-

  a) Mr. Sanjay Kumar Shroff  – Managing Director  w.e.f. 01st Feb 2018,

  b) Mr. Tapas Kumar Maity – Whole-time Director w.e.f. 20th February, 2018,

  c) Mr. Kunal Agarwal – Chief Financial Offi  cer w.e.f. 20th February, 2018 and 

  d) Mr. Anupam Jain - Company Secretary & Compliance Offi  cer w.e.f. 20th February, 2018.

  DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

  The Independent Directors have submitted their declarations of independence, as required pursuant to the 
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

  None of the Directors of the company are disqualifi ed from being appointed as Directors as specifi ed in Section 
164 of The Companies Act 2013.

  PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / REAPPOINTMENT

  As required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Particulars of the Director retiring by rotation and seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting is annexed to the notice convening 23rd  Annual General Meeting.

  BOARD EVALUATION

  Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors has carried 
out an annual evaluation of its own performance, its Committee and individual Directors. Assessment sheets for 
evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual directors were prepared based on various 
aspects, which among other parameters, included composition of the Board and its Committees, conducting of 
Board Meetings, eff ectiveness of its governance practices etc. Further the Independent Directors, at their meetings 
held during the year, reviewed the performance of the Board, the non Independent Directors and the Chairman.

  REMUNERATION POLICY

  The company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management 
Personnel (SMP) and other employees of the Company. The policy was approved by the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the Company in compliance to Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

12. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT.

 Except as disclosed elsewhere in the Report, no material changes and commitments which could aff ect the fi nancial 
position of the Company have occurred between the end of the fi nancial year of the Company to which the fi nancial 
statements relate and the date of this Report.
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13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
 Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 if any forms part of the notes 

to the fi nancial statements provided in the Annual Report.

14. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
 The Company has adequate internal controls and processes in place with respect to its fi nancial statements which 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements. 
These controls and processes are driven through various policies, procedures and certifi cations. The processes and 
controls are reviewed periodically. 

 Your Company has laid down standards and processes which enable internal fi nancial control across the Company and 
ensure that the same are adequate and are operating eff ectively.

15. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
 The extract of Annual Return in form no.MGT-9 as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the fi nancial 

year ending March 31, 2018 is annexed hereto as “Annexure A” and forms part of this report.

16. ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
 The company has adopted a new Articles of Association in view of the listing compliance.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 All related party transactions that were entered into during the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2018 were on an arm’s 

length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 were not attracted. Further, there are no materially signifi cant related party transactions during the year under 
review made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which 
may have a potential confl ict with the interests of the Company at large. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. 

18. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

 The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal ) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. There was no case of sexual harassment reported during the year.

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
& OUTGO:

 A. Conservation of Energy

  We have undertaken various initiatives for energy conservation at our premises as detailed below:-

  LED lights, and other energy conservation measures such as installation of energy effi  cient equipment, Variable 
Refrigerant Flow (VRF) technology in Air Conditioning System, Polarized refrigerant additive for improving 
compressor effi  ciency of Air Conditioning Systems, have been installed in our offi  ces.

  Rainwater harvesting is implemented at our corporate offi  ce.

  We have made out of the way eff orts to go electronic and reduce use of paper. In our transactions and interactions 
with our Bankers, Exchanges, Depositories, a large number of processes are being conducted electronically and 
thereby save energy. Our internal record keeping and communication between team members and various 
divisions has also tilted more towards electronic. We have reached out to our customers and other business 
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partners and stake holders and received  their collaboration in the ‘Go Green’ movement, encouraging online 
bill payment, online funds transfer and subscribing to e-statements to migrate customers to ‘paperless’ and 
‘commute-free’ modes of conducting fi nancial transactions.

 B. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo Earnings

Earnings NIL

Outgo NIL

20. RISK MANAGEMENT
 Risk Management is the process of identifi cation, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by coordinated eff orts 

to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate  events  or  to  maximise  the   
realization  of   opportunities.  The  Company  has  laid  down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization 
Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive 
management controls risk through means of a properly defi ned framework. The major risks have been identifi ed by the 
Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, 
event, fi nancial, human, environment and statutory compliance. 

21. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

 As part of its initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company has undertaken projects in the areas 
of Education, Health and Innovation. These projects are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as “Annexure B”.

22. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
 As per provision of section 134(5) and 134(3)( c)  of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) and based upon the representation 

of the Management, the Board of Directors of the Company confi rms that:

 a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the fi nancial year ended 31st March 2018, the applicable accounting 
standards had been followed and there have been no material departures from the same.

 b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Company 
at the end of the fi nancial year 31st March, 2018 and of the Profi t of the Company for that Period;

 c) The Directors had taken proper and suffi  cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 d) The directors had prepared the accounts for the fi nancial year ended 31st March 2018 on a going concern basis;

 e) The directors had laid down internal controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal controls are 
adequate and were operating eff ectively;

 f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems are adequate and operating eff ectively.

23. AUDITORS
 At the Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2014, M/s Jain Sonu & Associate, Chartered Accountants, 

Kolkata (Firm Registration No. 324386E) were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold offi  ce for a period 
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of fi ve (5) years, (subject to ratifi cation of the appointment by the Members at every Annual General Meeting held 
after this Annual General Meeting of the Company). In terms of fi rst proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013, the appointment of the auditors shall be placed for ratifi cation at every Annual General Meeting. In this regard, 
the Company has received a certifi cate from the auditors to the eff ect that if they are reappointed, it would be in 
accordance with the provision of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. The members are requested to ratify the 
appointment of auditor. The Auditor’s reports do not contain any qualifi cations, reservations or adverse remarks. The 
auditors have also not reported any fraud under sub section (12) of Section 143

24. COST AUDIT REPORT
 As per provision of section 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013 and rule 6(2) of Companies (Cost records and audit) Rules, 

2014, the company is not required to appoint a cost auditor to audit the cost records of the company.

25. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company with the approval of its Board, appointed Mr. Hitesh 
Bhansali, Practising Company Secretary, Kolkata to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the fi nancial 
year ended 31st March, 2018. The Secretarial Auditor confi rms that the Company has complied with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, Listing Regulations, applicable SEBI Regulations, 
Secretarial Standards and other laws applicable to the Company Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, 
certifi cates have been issued on a half-yearly basis, by a Company Secretary in practice, certifying due compliance of 
share transfer formalities by the Company.The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure- C”.

 A Chartered Accountant/company secretary in practice carries out a quarterly Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit, to 
reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Ltd. (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confi rms that the total issued/ listed capital is 
in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in 
dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL).

26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure D.

 The information required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, including amendment thereto, is provided in the Annexure forming part of the Report. In 
terms of the fi rst proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Shareholders 
excluding the aforesaid Annexure.  The said Annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company. 
Any shareholder interested in obtaining the same may write to the Company Secretary.

 During the year under review, your company enjoyed cordial relationship with employees at all levels.

27. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
 Pursuant to provision of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and 

its powers) Rules, 2014 there under read with Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclaimer Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company has established a vigil mechanism policy for its directors and employees to report 
their genuine concerns or  grievances The vigil mechanism policy provides adequate safeguard against the Whistle 
blower’s disclosures that can be made to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism Policy is available 
on the website of the Company www.eisec.com.During the Financial year ended 31st March, 2018, the Company has 
not received any complaint under this scheme. 



CORPORATE OVERVIEW   |   STATUTORY REPORTS   |   FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Report 2017-1816

28. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 The Corporate governance is not applicable to the company under Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclaimer Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

29. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS & SENIOR OFFICERS
 The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management in accordance with the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Code also incorporates the duties of Independent Directors. All the Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel have confi rmed compliance with the Code. A declaration to that eff ect has been signed by the Managing 
Director. A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website.

30. INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS
 Based on the requirements under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to 

time, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Corporate Disclosures 
which is applicable to all Directors and the Designated Employees of the Company. The Code lays down the guidelines, 
which advises on the procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing in shares of the Company 
and indicate the consequences of non-compliance. A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION
 The Board of Directors wishes to place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued support and wise 

counsel which the Company has received from SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Depositories and other regulatory authorities 
and its Bankers, clients and business partners with special mention of the support received from its employees and 
institutional clients. The Directors are thankful to the esteemed shareholders for their support and confi dence reposed 
on the company.

 Your directors look forward to the future with confi dence.

 Wishing you a very happy festive season ahead.

   For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata Sanjay Kumar Shroff  Vivek Agarwal

Date:  May 18, 2018  Managing Director Chairman
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Annexure A:

FORM NO. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
for the fi nancial year ended on 31st March 2018

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN U67120WB1995PLC072026

Registration Date 8th June 1995

Name of the Company East India Securities Limited

Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares/ Non-govt. Company

Address of the Registered offi  ce 10/1d Lal Bazar Street Mercantile Building Kolkata 700001

Contact Details +91-33-22480362 

Whether listed company Listed

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, if any

Cameo Corporate Services Limited, 

“Subramanian Building” 

1, Club House Road, Chennai-600 002

Tel: +91-44-40020700 

Website: www.cameoindia.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company are:-

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: NIL

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main products/services
NIC Code of the 
Product/service

% to total turnover 
of the Company

1 Securities Broking Services 99715210 100%

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of 
the Company

CIN/GLN
Holding/Subsidiary/ 

Associate
% of shares held Applicable Section

- - - - - -
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY):

 i. Category – wise shareholding

Sl.
No.

Category of 
Shareholder

Number of shares of Rs. 10/- each held at 
the beginning of the year 1st  April 2017

Number of shares of Rs. 10/- each held at 
the end of the year 31rd March 2018

% 
Change
during 

the year

Demat Physi-
cal

Total % of 
Total 
Share

Demat Physi-
cal

Total % of 
Total 
Share

A Promoters #
1 Indian

a) Individuals/ Hindu 
Undivided Family

0 3129000 3129000 85.32 2124600 0 2124600 57.94 -27.38

b) Central 
Government

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State Governments(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corporate 0 357000 357000 9.74 358400 0 358400 9.77 +0.03
e) Banks / Financial Insti-

tutions
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f ) Any Other LLP 0 181000 181000 4.94 176000 0 176000 4.80 -0.14
Sub-Total (A) (1) 0 3667000 3667000 100 2659000 0 2659000 72.51 -27.49
2 Foreign

a) NRIs – Individuals
b) Other Individuals
c) Bodies Corporate
d) Banks / Financial 

Institutions
e) Qualifi ed Foreign 

Investor
f ) Any Other (specify)

Sub-Total (A) (2)
Total Shareholding of Promot-
er (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B Public Shareholding
1 Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/ Financial 

Institutions
c) Central Government
d) State Governments (s)
e) Venture Capital Funds
f ) Insurance Companies
g) Foreign

Institutional
Investors /
Foreign Portfolio
Investors

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Investors

i) Any Other
(specify)
- Alternative
Investment Fund

Sub-Total (B) (1)
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY): (Contd.)

 i. Category – wise shareholding (Contd.)

Sl. 
No.

Category of 
Shareholder

Number of shares of Rs. 10/- each held at 
the beginning of the year 1st  April 2017

Number of shares of Rs. 10/- each held at 
the end of the year 31rd March 2018

% 
Change
during 

the year

Demat Physi-
cal

Total % of 
Total 
Share

Demat Physi-
cal

Total % of 
Total 
Share

2 Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate

i. Indian 893440 0 893440 24.36 +24.36

ii. Overseas

b) Individuals -

i. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs.1 lakh

58240 0 58240 1.59 +1.59

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh

48640 0 48640 1.33 +1.33

c) Any Other (Specify)

-Directors & their
Relatives Relatives

- Trust

-NBFCs
registered with
RBI

IEPF

HUF 7200 0 7200 0.20 +0.20

NRI 480 0 480 0.01 +0.01

Sub-total (B) (2) 1008000 0 1008000 27.49 +27.49

Total Public
Shareholding (B) =
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

TOTAL (A)+(B) 0 3667000 3667000 100 3667000 0 3667000 100 0

C Shares held by
Custodians for
GDRs & ADRs

1. Promoter and
Promoter Group

2. Public

GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 0 3667000 3667000 100 3667000 0 3667000 100 0

#  Includes Promoter Group
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 iii. Change in Promoters Shareholding (including Promoter Group)

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY): (Contd.)

 ii. Shareholding of Promoters (including Promoter Group)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 1st April 2017

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 31st March 2018

% Change 
in share-
holding 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares of 
10/- each

% of total 
Shares of 
the Com-

pany

% of 
Shares 

Pledged 
/ encum-

bered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares of 
10/- each

% of total 
Shares of 
the Com-

pany

% of 
Shares 

Pledged 
/ encum-

bered 
to total 
shares

1 Lakshmendra Kumar Agarwal 1566900 42.73 0 737940 20.12 0 - 22.61
2 Kusum Agarwal 40000 1.09 0 526880 14.37 0 +13.28
3 Adya Agarwal 0 0 0 488880 13.33 0 +13.33
4 Uma Shankar Agarwal 0 0 0 325960 8.89 0 +8.89
5 Vivek Agarwal 1472100 40.14 0 42340 1.15 0 -38.99
6 Monica Agarwal 0 0 0 1200 0.03 0 +0.03
7 Sushila Agarwal 0 0 0 800 0.02 0 +0.02
8 Vikash Agarwal 0 0 0 600 0.02 0 +0.02
9 Avant Garde Software P Ltd 180000 4.91 0 180000 4.91 0 0

10 DKO Trading Co LLP 181000 4.94 0 176000 4.80 0 -0.14
11 Mamta Commercial Co P Ltd 177000 4.83 0 177000 4.83 0 0
12 Avant Garde Re Energy P Ltd 0 0 0 1400 0.04 0 +0.04
13 Neha Agarwal 50000 1.36 0 0 0 0 -1.36

# Promoter Group

Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the 

year 1st April 2017

Date Reason Increase / 
Decrease in 

Shareholding

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

1 Lakshmendra Kumar Agarwal 1566900 42.73 13.03.2018 Off er for Sale -504000 13.74 1062900 28.99
27.03.2018 Inter Se -324960 8.87 737940 20.12

2 Kusum Agarwal 40000 1.09 27.03.2018 Inter Se 486880 13.28 526880 14.37
3 Adya Agarwal 0 0 20.02.2018 Inter Se 50000 1.36 50000 1.36

27.03.2018 Inter Se 438880 11.97 488880 13.33
4 Uma Shankar Agarwal 0 0 20.02.2018 Inter Se 1000 0.03 1000 0.03

27.03.2018 Inter Se 324960 8.86 325960 8.89
5 Vivek Agarwal 1472100 40.14 13.03.2018 Off er for Sale -504000 13.74 968100 26.40

27.03.2018 Inter Se -925760 25.25 42340 1.15
6 Monica Agarwal 0 0 20.02.2018 Inter Se 1200 0.03 1200 0.03
7 Sushila Agarwal 0 0 20.02.2018 Inter Se 800 0.02 800 0.02
8 Vikash Agarwal 0 0 20.02.2018 Inter Se 600 0.02 600 0.02
9 Avant Garde Software P Ltd 180000 4.91 180000 4.91

10 DKO Trading Co LLP 181000 4.94 20.02.2018 Inter Se -5000 0.14 176000 4.80
11 Mamta Commercial Co P Ltd 177000 4.83 177000 4.83
12 Avant Garde Re Energy P Ltd 0 0 20.02.2018 Inter Se 1400 0.04 1400 0.04
13 Neha Agarwal 50000 1.36 20.02.2018 Inter Se -50000 1.36 0 0
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Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the 

year 1st April 2017

Date Reason Increase / 
Decrease in 

Shareholding

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

1 Kamna Credits & Promoters P Ltd 10.03.2018 Allotment 207360 5.65 207360 5.65
2 Bellary Iron Ores Pvt Ltd 09.03.2018 Allotmemt 98400 2.68 98400 2.68

16.03.2018 Purchase 11680 0.32 110080 3.00
23.03.2018 Purchase 4960 0.14 115040 3.14
30.03.2018 Purchase 36480 0.99 151520 4.13

3 Omega Shelters Pvt Ltd 09.03.2018 Allotment 108800 2.97 108800 2.97
4 Venerable Advertising Pvt Ltd 10.03.2018 Allotment 84480 2.30 84480 2.30
5 Anchor Finstock Pvt Ltd 09.03.2018 Allotment 84480 2.30 84480 2.30
6 Pawanputra Merchants P Ltd 09.03.2018 Allotment 41440 1.13 41440 1.13

16.03.2018 Purchase 480 0.01 41920 1.14
23.03.2018 Purchase 18560 0.51 60480 1.65
30.03.2018 Purchase 11360 0.31 71840 1.96

7 Shree Bahubali Stock Broking P Ltd 09.03.2018 Allotment 50400 1.37 50400 1.37
16.03.2018 Purchase 640 0.02 51040 1.39
30.03.2018 Purchase 480 0.01 51520 1.40

8 Wonderful Mercantile Pvt Ltd 09.03.2018 Allotmenet 30880 0.84 30880 0.84
16.03.2018 Purchase 1920 0.05 32800 0.89
23.03.2018 Purchase 160 0.01 32960 0.90
30.03.2018 Purchase 11040 0.30 44000 1.20

9 Intercity Vincom P Ltd 09.03.2018 Allotment 33280 0.91 33280 0.91
16.03.2018 Purchase 4960 0.14 38240 1.04

10 Sushila Devi Bajaj 09.03.2018 Allotment 22880 0.62 22880 0.62
23.03.2018 Purchase 4160 0.11 27040 0.73
30.03.2018 Purchase 8160 0.22 35200 0.96

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY): (Contd.)

 iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and holders of 
(GDRs and ADRs)

V. INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COMPANY INCLUDING INTEREST OUTSTANDING/ACCRUED BUT NOT 
DUE FOR PAYMENT:

 Nil

Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the 

year 1st April 2017

Date Reason Increase / 
Decrease in 

Shareholding

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

No. of 
shares 
of  10/- 

each

% of 
total 

shares

1 Vivek Agarwal 1472100 40.14 13.03.2018 Off er for Sale -504000 13.74 968100 26.40

27.03.2018 Inter Se -925760 25.25 42340 1.15

 v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole – Time Directors/Manager:

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Sanjay Kumar 
Shroff - Managing 

Director

Mr. Tapas Kumar 
Maity- Whole-time 

Director

Total `

1. Gross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

` 95107/- ` 309467/- 404574/-

b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

0 0 0

c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

0 0 0

2. Stock Option 0 0 0

3. Sweat Equity 0 0 0

4. Commission

- as % of profi t

- Others, please specify

5. Others, please specify

Total ` 95107/- ` 309467/- 404574/-

Ceiling as per the Act (@ 10% of the net profi ts of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013)

N.A

 B. Remuneration to other Directors:
  1. Independent Directors

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total

Mr. Tarit Kumar 
Bhaumik

Mrs. Kirti 
Kothari

Mr. Adrish 
Ray

1. Fee for attending Board/ Committee Meetings 4000 4000 4000 12000

2. Commission paid for 2016-17 0 0 0 0

3. Others, Please Specify 0 0 0 0

Total (B1) 4000 4000 4000 12000

  2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Vivek Agarwal Total

1. Fee for attending Board/ Committee Meetings 0

2. Commission paid for 2016-17 0

3. Others, Please Specify 0

Total (B2) 0

Total Managerial Remuneration (B1) + (B2) 0

Total Sitting Fees 0

Total Commission 0

Overall ceiling as per the Act for payment of commission to Non-Executive Directors (@1% of the net 
profi ts of the Company for FY 2017-18 calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

N.A
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: (Contd.)

 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD :

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENTS/COMPUNDING OF OFFENCES:

 There were no penalties, punishments or compounding of off ences during the year ended 31st March, 2018 for breach 
of any Section of the Companies Act, 2013 against the Company or its Directors or other offi  cers in default.

Sl. No. Gross Salary Mr. Kunal Agarwal 
Chief Financial 

Offi  cer

Mr. Anupam Jain 
(Company 
Secretary)

1. a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

` 643580.00 ` 16000.00

b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961

0 0

c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961

0 0

Stock Option 0 0

2. Sweat Equity 0 0

3. Commission 0 0

- as % of profi t 0 0

- Others, please specify 0 0

4. Others, please specify 0 0

Total ` 643580.00 ` 16000.00
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Annexure B:
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
ACTIVITIES 2017-18

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

 The company has framed a CSR policy in compliance with the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 and the same is 
placed on the company’s website and the web link is www.eisec.com

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
 1. Mr. Vivek Agarwal- Chairman, Non Executive Director

 2. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Shroff - Member, Managing Director

 3. Mr. Tarit Kumar Bhaumik- Member- Non Executive Independent Director

3. Average Net Profi t of the Company for last three fi nancial years: ( 2014-15,2015-16,2016-17)
 Average Net Profi t- ` 19.90 Crore

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)
 The Company is required to spend ` 39,79,636/- towards CSR.

5. Details of CSR spent during the fi nancial year.:
 (a) Total amount to be spent for the fi nancial year; ` 40,00,000/-

 (b) Amount unspent, if any;  ` NIL

 (c) Manner in which the amount spent during the fi nancial year is detailed below.

6. The CSR Committee Confi rms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR 
objectives and policy of the company.

    Sd/- Sd/-

    Sanjay Kumar Shroff  Vivek Agarwal
    Member CSR Committee, Managing Director Chairman CSR Committee, Chairman

Sl. 
No

CSR project 
or activity 
identifi ed

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or 
programs

(1) Local area or 
other

(2) Specify the 
State and district 

where projects 
or programs was 

undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 

or programs
Sub – heads:

(1) Direct 
expenditure 

on projects or 
programs

(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent: Direct or through
implementing agency*

1 Social Social Local 1500000 1500000 1500000
Implementing Agency- Parivaar 
Education Society

2 Social Social Local 1500000 1500000 1500000
Implementing Agency- Parivaar 
Education Society

3 Social Social Local 400000 400000 400000
Implementing Agency-Samaritan 
Help Mission

4 Social Social Local 600000 600000 600000
Implementing Agency-Friend of 
Tribal Society

TOTAL 4000000 4000000 4000000
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Annexure C:
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH, 2018

To,
The Members
East India Securities Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by East India Securities Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verifi cation of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other records maintained 
by the Company, the information provided by the Company, its offi  cers, agents and authorised representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifi cations given to us and the representations made by the Management, 
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the fi nancial year ended on 31st 
March, 2018, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records made available to us and 
maintained by the Company for the fi nancial year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the applicable provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and 
amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Bene_ ts) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period)

 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

 f ) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

 g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period) and

 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period)
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vi) Other laws applicable specifi cally to the Company namely

 a) Shops and Establishment Act

 b) Local/Municipality Laws

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general 
meetings.

ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors based on the representation made by the Company in this regard. The changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act.

2. Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifi cations on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.

3. All decisions in the Board is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc.

We further report that during the audit period no such events have occurred which had bearing on the Company’s aff airs in 
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

We further report that the Company has listed its shares on BSE SME platform with eff ect from 13th March, 2018.

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date  which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of 
this report.

    For Hitesh Bhansali
    Practicing Company Secretary
Place : Kolkata  ACS No.: A38561
Date:   26th July, 2018 CP No.: 16329
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To,
The Members,
East India Securities Limited

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifi cation was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are refl ected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

3. We have not verifi ed the correctness and appropriateness of fi nancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verifi cation of procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the effi  ciency or 
eff ectiveness with which the management has conducted the aff airs of the company. 

    For Hitesh Bhansali

    Practicing Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata  ACS No.: A38561

Date:   26th July, 2018 CP No.: 16329

ANNEXURE TO SECRETERIAL AUDIT REPORT
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Annexure D:
Details of  Remuneration of Directors, KMPs and Employees
[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each Whole-time Director* to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the fi nancial year 2017-18, the percentage increase in remuneration of Chief Executive Offi  cer, Chief Financial Offi  cer 
and Company Secretary during the fi nancial year 2017-18:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director/KMP Designation Ratio of Remuneration to  
median remuneration

% Increase in 
Remuneration

1 Sanjay Kumar Shroff Managing Director 0.95 NA

2 Tapas Kumar Maity Whole Time Director 0.52 5.26%

3 Kunal Agarwal Chief Financial Offi  cer NA 8.18%

4 Anupam Jain Company Secretary NA NA

 * None of the Non Executive Directors of the Company was paid remuneration except sitting fees paid for Board/
Committee Meetings.

 i. The percentage increase/decrease in the median remuneration of employees for the fi nancial year was -17.78%

 ii. The Company had 52 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2018.

 iii. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of managerial employees was +3.02% and for other than the 
managerial personnel was +13.77%.

 iv. It is hereby affi  rmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company

 v. Reporting of  Details of Top Ten Employees in terms of remuneration drawn as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] in the Annual Report is not applicable to 
the company in view of Rule 5(2) (i) and (ii). However, in terms of 2nd provisio to Rule 5(3), such particulars shall be 
made available to any shareholder on a request made by him/ her in writing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

World Economic overview:

The global economic upswing that began around mid-2016 has become broader and stronger. This new World Economic 
Outlook report projects that advanced economies as a group will continue to expand above their potential growth rates this 
year and next before decelerating, while growth in emerging market and developing economies will rise before leveling off . 
For most countries, current favorable growth rates will not last. Policymakers should seize this opportunity to bolster growth, 
make it more durable, and equip their governments better to counter the next downturn.

World growth strengthened in 2017 to 3.8 percent, with a notable rebound in global trade. It was driven by an investment 
recovery in advanced economies, continued strong growth in emerging Asia, a notable upswing in emerging Europe, and 
signs of recovery in several commodity exporters. Global growth is expected to tick up to 3.9 percent this year and next, 
supported by strong momentum, favorable market sentiment, accommodative fi nancial conditions, and the domestic and 
international repercussions of expansionary fi scal policy in the United States. The partial recovery in commodity prices 
should allow conditions in commodity exporters to gradually improve.

As per reports equity markets will be carried to new highs by a supportive macro environment in 2018. Headwinds are 
present though. The US economy is at risk of overheating, tighter fi nancial conditions could slow the European recovery and 
Chinese growth stimulus seems likely to moderate following the 2017 Party Congress. Geopolitical risks related to North 
Korea or US trade relations could fl are up at any time.

How can investors weather the heights in asset valuations and the potential risks in 2018? We think this environment calls for 
a dynamic approach to asset allocation, an equity strategy that looks beyond the major developed market benchmarks and 
a fi xed income approach that seeks returns outside of developed market government and corporate bonds.

The backdrop is therefore one of reasonable stability with the potential for bouts of short-term volatility. In contrast to 2016, 
when liquidity fuelled a highly correlated rally in certain cyclical sectors, 2017 has been a year of dispersion. The market has 
rewarded companies showing continued execution in terms of revenue, earnings and cashfl ow growth, whilst punishing 
those that disappoint. 2018 is likely to remain a favourable environment for stock-pickers, in our view.

As per IMF Emerging and Developing Asia is expected to maintain its robust performance, growing at 6.5 percent in 2018–
19. Growth in China is projected to moderate from 6.9 percent in 2017 to 6.6 percent in 2018 and 6.4 percent in 2019, as 
regulatory tightening of the fi nancial sector takes hold and external demand softens. In Emerging and Developing Europe, 
growth is projected to moderate from 5.9 percent in 2017 to 4.3 percent in 2018 and further to 3.6 percent in 2019 (0.1 
percentage point lower than in the April WEO for 2019). In the United States, near-term momentum in the economy is 
expected to strengthen temporarily in line with the April WEO forecast, with growth projected at 2.9 percent in 2018 and 
2.7 percent in 2019. Growth in the euro area economy is projected to slow gradually from 2.4 percent in 2017 to 2.2 percent 
in 2018 and to 1.9 percent in 2019 (a downward revision of 0.2 percentage point for 2018 and 0.1 percentage point for 2019 
compared with the April WEO).

Indian Economic Overview:

The Indian economy is expected to grow at an annual rate of 7.4% in 2018 and 7.8% in 2019, according to a recently released 
IMF Economic Outlook. India’s economy is “lifted by strong private consumption as well as fading transitory eff ects of the 
currency exchange initiative and implementation of the national goods and services tax,” notes the report. “Over the medium 
term, growth is expected to gradually rise with continued implementation of structural reforms that raise productivity and 
incentivize private investment.”
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India’s projected 2018-19 growth rates are well above China’s 6.6% and 6.4% over the same period. And things could get even 

worse for Chinese economic growth over the long-term, due to the continued rise of the country’s nonfi nancial debt. “Over 

the medium term, the economy is projected to continue rebalancing away from investment toward private consumption 

and from industry to services, but nonfi nancial debt is expected to continue rising as a share of GDP, and the accumulation 

of vulnerabilities clouds the medium-term outlook,” notes the IMF report.

GDP annual growth rate in India averaged 6.13% from 1951 until 2017, reaching an all-time high of 11.40% in the fi rst quarter 

of 2010 and a record low of -5.20% in the fourth quarter of 1979, according to Tradingeconomics.com.

In the last four years, India gained 20 points in the World Economic Forum’s (WEFR) Global Competitiveness rankings, while 

China’s ranking remained roughly unchanged

As per the second advance estimates of national income released by the Central Statistics Offi  ce in February 2018, real 

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at constant prices is estimated to grow at 6.6% for 2017-18. The Indian economy achieved 

an impressive growth rate of 7.2%, a fi ve-quarter high during the third quarter (Oct-Dec) of FY18 as opposed to 6.5% in the 

second quarter. India also regained its tag of the fastest growing major economy in the third quarter.

Gross Value Added (GVA) at basic constant prices for 2017-18 is expected to be around 6.4% as against 7.1% in 2016-17.

Sectors such as public administration, defence and other services; trade, hotels, transport, communication and services 

related to broadcasting; electricity, gas and water supply and other utility services and fi nancial, real estate and professional 

services are anticipated to register a growth rate of over 7%.

At the sectoral level, agriculture, industry and services are expected to grow at 3%, 4.8% and 8.3% respectively during FY18.

Industrial growth also recovered with the Index of Industrial production (IIP) registering an impressive growth rate of 7.5% in 

January 2018 as compared to 2.4% in January 2017. The cumulative growth for the period April-Jan 2017-18 stood at 3.7% in 

contrast to 5.1% growth registered during April-Jan 2016-17.

The faster pace of growth for January 2018 can be accorded to the growth of the Manufacturing and Electricity sectors. 

During April-Jan 2018, the Manufacturing sector registered a growth rate of 4.3% while the Electricity sector grew at 5.3% 

for the same period.

Manufacturing sub-sectors such as pharmaceuticals, electronics and transport equipment registered robust double digit 

growth rates, while growth in other sectors such as electrical equipment, garments and textiles slackened.

Indian exports exhibited positive growth during February 2018 at 4.48% in dollar terms over February 2017. Cumulative 

value of exports for the period April-Feb 2017-18 at US$ 273 billion expanded by around 11% over the same period during 

2016-17.

Major commodity groups of export that recorded positive growth in February FY18 over the corresponding month of last 

year included Petroleum Products, Organic & Inorganic Chemicals, Drugs & Pharmaceuticals, Rice and Electronic Goods.

India’s current account defi cit (CAD) stood at US$ 13.5 billion accounting for 2% of GDP in the third quarter (Oct-Dec) of 

2017-18, higher than US$ 8 billion (1.4% of GDP) during third quarter of 2016-17 and US$ 7.2 billion (1.1% of GDP) in the 

preceding quarter.

The widening of CAD on a year-on-year basis was the result of the increased trade defi cit which stood at US$ 44.1 billion 

during the period.

The global economy is stabilising with favourable global trade and fi nancial conditions. Domestically, GST promises to 

deliver positive outcomes as India becomes a single, more competitive market. We can look forward to an upward growth 

path for India in FY 2018-19.
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The Indian BFSI Sector

Weighed down by a pool of bad loans, performance of the banking sector, especially of public sector banks, has remained 

subdued in the current fi nancial year, according to the Economic Survey. But, the situation is likely to improve with banks 

diligently following on recoveries and stressed asset resolution. Early signs of a pick-up in credit demand, especially from 

industry, also give room to expect a change in the state of aff airs.

Primary Market: The year 2017-18 witnessed a steady increase in resource mobilisation in the primary market segment as 

compared to the corresponding period in the last fi nancial year. During the year 228 companies accessed primary market 

and raised 110140 crores compared to 61848 crores raised through 133 issues during the corresponding period of FY 

2016-17 (See table below)

Primary Market Resource Mobilisation through Public and Right Issues (` Crore)

Issue Type
2016-17 2017-18

No of Issues Amount No of Issues Amount

Public Issues(Equity) 121 58433 207 88740

Rights Issues(Equity) 12 3415 21 21400

Total Equity 133 61848 228 110140

Source: SEBI

Mutual Fund: The Indian mutual fund industry also registered a robust growth during fi nancial year 2017-18. The AUM 

of Mutual Funds industry witnessed a constant growth in terms of new investment and increase in value of the existing 

investments as result of overall good market conditions. (See table below)

Market Resource Mobilisation by Mutual Funds (` Crore)

Financial Year Gross Mobilization Redemption Net Infl ow Assets at the end of the period

2016-17 17615549 17272500 343049 1754619

2017-18 20998652 20726855 271797 2136036

Source: SEBI

Equity Market:

Trading turnover in Capital market for FY 17-18 stood at ̀  83,17,987 Crore against ` 60,54,422 Crore in FY 2016-17 registering 

a growth of almost 37 percent.

Market Capitalization of NSE stood at ` 1,40,44,151.54 Crore for FY 17-18 as against ` 1,19,78,420.90 Crore for FY 16-17 

thereby registering a growth of 17.25 percent YOY basis.

The Indian equity market is likely to be an “outperformer” even as absolute returns are likely to be capped by a tepid global 

equity market outlook, a Morgan Stanley research report said. According to the global fi nancial services major, while 

improving growth and reasonable large-cap valuations are expected to boost markets, in an election year, rising oil prices 

and higher yields are expected to drag.

Morgan Stanley pegged BSE Sensex earnings growth at 5 per cent, 23 per cent and 24 per cent for the fi nancial year 2018, 

fi scal 2019 and fi scal 2020, respectively. In the base case (50 per cent probability) Morgan Stanley expects BSE Sensex to be 

around 36,000 by June 2019. In the bull case (30 per cent probability), Sensex may be at 44,000. And in the bear case (20 per 

cent probability), Sensex may be around 26,500.
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Derivatives
Trading Turnover in Equity Derivatives Segment has witnessed as sharp growth. The combined turnover of Index Futures, 
Stock Futures, Index Options and Stock Options on NSE platform for FY 2017-18 stood at ` 16,49,84,859 Crore whereas for FY 
2016-17 it was ` 9,43,70,302 crore registering a growth of 74 percent YOY basis.

Trading Turnover in Currency Derivatives Segment has witnessed a nominal growth. The combined turnover of Currency 
Futures and Currency Options on NSE platform for FY 2017-18 stood at ` 50,28,502 Crore whereas for FY 2016-17 it was 
` 48,57,076 crore. 

Insurance Sector
Insurance, being an integral part of the fi nancial sector, plays a signifi cant role in India’s economy. The potential and 
performance of the insurance sector should be assessed on the basis of two parameters, viz., Insurance Penetration and 
Insurance Density. Insurance penetration is defi ned as the ratio of premium underwritten in a given year to the gross 
domestic product (GDP). Insurance density is defi ned as the ratio of premium underwritten in a given year to the total 
population (measured in US$ for convenience of international comparison). The Insurance penetration which was 2.71 per 
cent in 2001, increased to 3.49 per cent in 2016 (Life 2.72 per cent and General 0.77 per cent). Insurance Penetration in some 
of the emerging economies in Asia, i.e., Malaysia, Thailand and China during the same year i.e. 2016 was 4.77, 5.42 and 4.15 
per cent respectively. Globally insurance penetration and density were 3.47 per cent and US$ 353 for the life segment in 2016 
and 2.81 per cent and US$ 285.3 for the non-life segment respectively. The insurance density in India, which was US$ 11.5 
in 2001, has increased to US$ 59.7 in 2016 (Life 46.5 and General 13.2). The comparative fi gures for Malaysia, Thailand and 
China during the same period i.e. 2016 were US$ 452.2, US$ 323.4 and US$ 337.1 respectively. During the fi scal 2016-17, the 
Gross Direct Premium (GDP) of General Insurers (within India) was ` 130.97 thousand crores, registering 33 per cent growth 
(highest ever since 2000-01). Crop insurance, motor sales, health insurance etc. helped the industry report this growth. Life 
insurance industry recorded a premium income of ` 418 thousand crores as against ` 367 thousand crores in the previous 
fi nancial year, registering a growth of 14.04 per cent.

(Source: Economic Survey 2018)

Depository
Indian depository system is also witnessing a steady growth by adding more demat accounts. As per SEBI report combined 
count of demat accounts of NSDL and CDSL as on 31.03.2018 was 319.33 Lakhs as against no of demat account as on 
31.03.2017 being 278.48 lakhs thereby registering a growth of 14.67 percent YOY basis. This refl ect the increasing willingness 
of the people to connect with secondary market. (Source: SEBI)

GROWTH DRIVERS
India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world as per the Central Statistics Organisation (CSO) and 
International Monetary Fund (IMF) and it is expected to be one of the top three economic powers of the world over the next 
10-15 years, backed by its strong democracy and partnerships. India’s GDP is estimated to have increased 6.6 per cent in 
2017-18 and is expected to grow 7.3 per cent in 2018-19.

Market size
India’s gross domestic product (GDP) at constant prices grew by 7.2 per cent in September-December 2017 quarter as per 
the Central Statistics Organisation (CSO). Corporate earnings in India are expected to grow by 15-20 per cent in FY 2018-19 
supported by recovery in capital expenditure, according to JM Financial.

The tax collection fi gures between April 2017- February 2018 show an increase in net direct taxes by 19.5 per cent year-on-
year and an increase in net direct taxes by 22.2 per cent year-on-year.
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India has retained its position as the third largest startup base in the world with over 4,750 technology startups, with about 
1,400 new start-ups being founded in 2016, according to a report by NASSCOM.

India’s labour force is expected to touch 160-170 million by 2020, based on rate of population growth, increased labour 
force participation, and higher education enrolment, among other factors, according to a study by ASSOCHAM and Thought 
Arbitrage Research Institute.

India’s foreign exchange reserves were US$ 422.53 billion in the week up to March 23, 2018, according to data from the RBI.

Recent Developments
With the improvement in the economic scenario, there have been various investments in various sectors of the economy. 
The M&A activity in India increased 53.3 per cent to US$ 77.6 billion in 2017 while private equity (PE) deals reached US$ 24.4 
billion. Some of the important recent developments in Indian economy are as follows:

India’s merchandise exports and imports grew 11.02 per cent and 21.04 per cent on a y-o-y basis to US$ 273.73 billion and 
US$ 416.87 billion, respectively, during April-February 2017-18. 

India’s Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) infl ows reached US$ 208.99 billion during April 2014 - December 2017, with maximum 
contribution from services, computer software and hardware, telecommunications, construction, trading and automobiles. 

India’s Index of Industrial Production (IIP) rose 7.5 per cent year-on-year in January 2018 while retail infl ation reached a four 
month low of 4.4 per cent in February 2018.

The average salary hike of Indian employees is estimated to be 9.4 per cent and that of key talents is estimated to be nearly 
15.4 per cent in 2018, backed by increased focus on performance by companies, according to Aon Hewitt.

India has improved its ranking in the World Bank’s Doing Business Report by 30 spots over its 2017 ranking and is ranked 100 
among 190 countries in 2018 edition of the report.

Government Initiatives
Prime Minister’s Employment Generation Programme (PMEGP) will be continued with an outlay of Rs 5,500 crore (US$ 844.81 
million) for three years from 2017-18 to 2019-20, according to the Cabinet Committee on Economic Aff airs (CCEA).

The Government of India has succeeded in providing road connectivity to 85 per cent of the 178,184 eligible rural habitations 
in the country under its Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana (PMGSY) since its launch in 2014.

The Government of India has decided to invest Rs 2.11 trillion (US$ 32.9 billion) to recapitalise public sector banks over the 
next two years and Rs 7 trillion (US$ 109.31billion) for construction of new roads and highways over the next fi ve years.

The Government of India will spend around Rs 1 lakh crore (US$ 15.62 billion) during FY 18-20 to build roads in the country 
under Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana (PMGSY).

India’s revenue receipts are estimated to touch Rs 28-30 trillion (US$ 436- 467 billion) by 2019, owing to Government of 
India’s measures to strengthen infrastructure and reforms like demonetisation and Goods and Services Tax (GST).

Increase in Per Capita Income
As per offi  cial data India’s per capita income grew at a pace of 8.6 per cent to Rs 1,12,835 during the fi scal ended on March 
2018. This could channelize more infl ow to Indian fi nancial market.

Digitization and use of Information Technology 

The fi nancial services industry heavily depend on digitization and there is increasing awareness and use of Digitization and 
information technology due to various government programs. This will further boost fi nancial market as more people will 
be able to understand it. Digitization and internet is reaching to far more remote areas thereby increasing number of people 
who use internet services. 
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OUTLOOK
Introduction:
India has a diversifi ed fi nancial sector undergoing rapid expansion, both in terms of strong growth of existing fi nancial 
services fi rms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial banks, insurance companies, non-
banking fi nancial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller fi nancial entities. The banking 
regulator has allowed new entities such as payments banks to be created recently thereby adding to the types of entities 
operating in the sector. However, the fi nancial sector in India is predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks 
accounting for more than 64 per cent of the total assets held by the fi nancial system.

The Government of India has introduced several reforms to liberalise, regulate and enhance this industry. The Government 
and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) have taken various measures to facilitate easy access to fi nance for Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises (MSMEs). These measures include launching Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for Micro and Small Enterprises, 
issuing guideline to banks regarding collateral requirements and setting up a Micro Units Development and Refi nance Agency 
(MUDRA). With a combined push by both government and private sector, India is undoubtedly one of the world’s most 
vibrant capital markets. In 2017,a new portal named ‘Udyami Mitra’ has been launched by the Small Industries Development 
Bank of India (SIDBI) with the aim of improving credit availability to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises’ (MSMEs) in the 
country. India has scored a perfect 10 in protecting shareholders’ rights on the back of reforms implemented by Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

Market Size:
The Mutual Fund (MF) industry in India has seen rapid growth in Assets Under Management (AUM). Total AUM of the industry 
stood at Rs 23.26 lakh crore (US$ 360.90 billion) as of April 2018. At the same time the number of Mutual fund (MF) equity 
portfolios reached a record high of 2.27 billion in February 2018.

On account of rise in investments in the Mutual Funds and other fi nancial instruments, the revenues of the brokerage industry 
in India are forecasted to grow by 15-20 per cent to reach Rs 18,000-19,000 crore (US$ 2.80-2.96 billion) in FY2017-18, backed 
by healthy volumes and a rise in the share of the cash segment.

Another crucial component of India’s fi nancial industry is the insurance industry. The insurance industry has been expanding 
at a fast pace. The total fi rst year premium of life insurance companies grew 17.35 per cent year-on-year to reach US$ 25.44 
billion during April 2017-February 2018.

Along with the secondary market, the market for Initial Public Off ers (IPOs) has also witnessed rapid expansion. The total 
amount of Initial Public Off erings increased to Rs 84,357 crore (US$ 13,089 million) by the end of FY18.

Over the past few years India has witnessed a huge increase in Mergers and Acquisition (M&A) activity. The total value of 
M&A in India rose 53.3 per cent year-on-year to US$ 77.6 billion in 2017 from US$ 50.6 billion in the preceding year.

Furthermore, India’s leading bourse Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) will set up a joint venture with Ebix Inc to build a robust 
insurance distribution network in the country through a new distribution exchange platform.

Investments/Developments
 Global payments solution giant Mastercard has launched its fi rst technology lab in Pune, which will enable India to 

move towards digital economy and fi nancial inclusion.

 Four metro cities of Delhi, Mumbai, Bangalore and Chennai can reap benefi ts of US$ 7.2 billion annually by increasing 
payments through digital means.

 BankBazaar, a fi nancial marketplace start-up in India, raised US$ 30 million in a funding round led by Experian Plc, a 
credit rating agency based in UK, taking the company’s total funding to US$ 110 million.
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 Private equity (PE) investments in India increased 59 per cent to US$ 24.4 billion in 2017, with average deal size of US$ 
42.8 million, according to data provided by Venture Intelligence.

 Private equity and venture capital fi rms recorded investments worth US$ 7.9 billion with 180 deals during January-
March, 2018.

 In May 2018, total equity funding’s of microfi nance sector grew at the rate of 39.88% to ` 96.31 billion (US$ 4.49 billion) 
in 2017-18 from ` 68.85 billion (US$ 1.03 billion).

Government Initiatives
 SEBI plans to allow investors to make mutual funds transactions worth up to Rs 50,000 (US$ 750) a month through digital 

wallets, as part of its eff orts to digitise the distribution processes for all fi nancial products. It also plans to allow immediate 
credit to customer’s bank accounts on liquid mutual funds redemption to attract retail customers as well as boost infl ows.

 The Government of India has relaxed norms for small merchants with a turnover of up to Rs 2 crore (US$ 300,000), 
allowing them to pay 6 per cent of deemed profi t in tax instead of 8 per cent of total turnover or gross receipts received 
through banking channels or digital means for FY 2016-17, in a bid to encourage cashless transactions in the country.

 The lending target has been fi xed at Rs 244,000 crore (US$ 36.46 billion) for 2017-18.

 The Government of India launched the ‘Bharat 22’ exchange traded fund (ETF), which will be managed by ICICI Prudential 
Mutual Fund, and is looking to raise Rs 8,000 crore (US$ 1.22 billion) initially.

 In April 2018, the Government of India issued minimum FDI capital requirement of US$ 20 million for unregistered /
exempt fi nancial entities engaged in ‘fund based activities’ and threshold of US$ 2 million for unregistered fi nancial 
entities engaged in ‘non-fund based activities’.

Road Ahead
 India is today one of the most vibrant global economies, on the back of robust banking and insurance sectors. The 

relaxation of foreign investment rules has received a positive response from the insurance sector, with many companies 
announcing plans to increase their stakes in joint ventures with Indian companies. Over the coming quarters there could 
be a series of joint venture deals between global insurance giants and local players.

 The Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI) is targeting nearly fi ve fold growth in assets under management (AUM) 
to Rs 95 lakh crore (US$ 1.47 trillion) and a more than three times growth in investor accounts to 130 million by 2025.

 India’s mobile wallet industry is estimated to grow at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 150 per cent to reach 
US$ 4.4 billion by 2022 while mobile wallet transactions to touch Rs 32 trillion (USD $ 492.6 billion) by 2022.

Exchange Rate Used: INR 1 = US$ 0.016 as of FY2018.
Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/fi nancial-services-india.aspx

RISKS AND CONCERNS
1. Product Risk:   Such risk are due to products on off er in the market.  EISL is a well diversifi ed fi nancial services provider 

and uses various products to mitigate such Risks.

2. Market & Regulatory Risk:  Such risks are unavoidable and biggest threat to the business. Any untoward incident in the 
market may lead to high losses. Any change in the policy of market regulator may have negative impact on the business.

 EISL uses robust risk management policy to avoid any signifi cant risk arising out of adverse change in market.  EISL keeps 
its portfolio diversifi ed so that its assets are not concentrated in one particular segment. Further EISL employs highly 
qualifi ed employees to mitigate the risk due to changes in policies of market regulator.
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3. Operation Risk: This risk relates to internal risk arising out of fraud by employees or theft of important data. 

 The company has stringent internal control measures. The Audit committee also monitors compliance with all aspects. 
Regular training and screening of employees is also done.

4. Technological Risk: The Company heavily depends on technology which is provided by third parties and vendors. In 
the event of failure of technology and connectivity company may incur signifi cant losses.

 The company gets its system audit regularly done. The company also have disaster recovery plan to cope up with sudden 
break down at one particular location. 

5. Financial Risk: Such risk are mainly due to inability of debtors to pay their dues and losses due to trading.

 Company has policy to take proper margin from its clients before allowing them to trade. The company also keeps 
a regular follow ups with clients to pay their dues. Trading losses are minimized by allocation of funds to diversifi ed 
strategies and portfolios.

6. Strategy Risk: Risk arising out of failure of particular strategy

 EISL keeps on devising diff erent strategies to remain ahead of its competitors. All such strategies are triggered keeping 
the business safeguarded.

PERFORMANCE
Below table shows performance of the company on the basis of turnover on diff erence exchange segments:

Amount in ` (Crore)

EXCHANGE AND SEGMENT TURNOVER (2017-18) TURNOVER (2016-17)

BSE CASH 1977.70 1013.39

BSE EQUITY DERIVATIVE 0.15 44.65

BSE CURRENCY DERIVATIVE 154539.33 165141.70

BSE DEBT 3903.58 -

NSE CASH 25269.51 14214.07

NSE EQUITY DERIVATIVE 200854.92 127703.95

NSE CURRENCY 276773.80 131187.72

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has an adequate system of internal controls to ensure accuracy of accounting records, compliance with all 
laws & regulations and compliance with all rules, procedures & guidelines prescribed by the management. 

The Company has set up an Internal Control Committee to oversee all the internal control functions and report the 
observations to the Audit Committee on a periodic basis. The Company has in place an eff ective internal audit department 
which plans and executes a variety of audits with own staff  as well as external professionals. Post audit reviews are also 
carried out to ensure follow up. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the scope and observations of the internal audit 
on a regular basis.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Our promoters, Mr. Lakshmendra Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Vivek Agarwal, with their knowledge and experience are well-
assisted by our Key Managerial Persons who have helped us retain entrenched relations with existing customers and also 
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helped us engage new customers. We believe that our experience, knowledge and human resources will enable us to drive 
the business in a successful and profi table manner.

Our Company is committed towards creating an organization that nurtures talent. We have employed a prudent mix of the 
experienced staff  and youth which gives us the dual advantage.

Our company also conducts regular training programs which is aimed towards strengthening skills, enhancing productivity 
and building sense of ownership among its employees.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results to 
diff er materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. Forward- looking statements refl ect 
our current views with respect to future events and are not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based 
on our management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we 
believe the assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions 
could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward- looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of East India Securities Limited

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of EAST INDIA SECURITIES LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profi t and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement, and a summary 
of signifi cant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year then ended.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eff ectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
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statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018 and 
its profi t and Loss and Cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specifi ed in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account;

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018, taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018, from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f ) With Respect to the adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting of the Company and the 

operating eff ectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

 g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rule,2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

  i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses.

  iii. No amount is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company as on 

31st March, 2018.

    For JAIN SONU & ASSOCIATES
    Chartered   Accountants
    Registration No. 324386E

    SONU JAIN
 Place: Kolkata Partner
 Dated: May 18, 2018 (Membership No.060015)
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

1 a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of fi xed assets; 

 b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verifi ed by the management at reasonable intervals and no material 
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fi xed assets have been noticed. 

  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no substantial part of fi xed asset has 
been disposed off  during the year and therefore does not aff ect the going concern assumption.

2. a) As explained to us, the Stock-in-Trade (Securities) is kept in demat form, hence the stock in trade are only reconciled/
verifi ed with the demat account statements by the management at reasonable intervals.

 b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedure for verifi cation of 
demat stock followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its business.

 c) In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is generally maintaining proper 
records of its stocks. No discrepancies have been noticed on verifi cation of demat stocks statement as compared to 
book records.

3. The Company has complied with the section 189 of the Act in regards to the grant of any loans, secured or unsecured, 
to any companies, fi rms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 
189 of the Act. 

4. In respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security, the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 have been complied with.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevent provisions of the 
Act and the rules framed there under. The directives issued by Reserve Bank of India are not applicable to the Company.

6. The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

7. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 a) The company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, 
Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax, GST and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the 
appropriate authorities.

 b) There was no undisputed amounts payable in respect of  provident fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Service Tax, GST and other material statutory dues in arrears as on 31st March 2018 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

 c) Details of statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of disputes are given below:

Nature of Demand Disputed Amount Current Status

Income Tax Demand for AY 
2014-15. Date of Order- 26.08.2018

` 7,45,64,360
The Company has fi led appeal against the assessment 
order. The company has already partly paid demand of
` 1,11,84,654/- 

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of EAST INDIA SECURITIES 
LIMITED (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st March, 2018. We report that:
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8. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion; 
that the company has not defaulted in repayment of Loans or borrowings to fi nancial institutions, banks, or Government. 

9. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the 
company has not raised moneys by way of initial public off er or further public off er including debt instruments and 
term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the company or any fraud on the company by its offi  cers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course 
of our audit, that causes the fi nancial statements to be materially misstated.

11. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the 
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company, therefore clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not 
applicable to the Company.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable and the 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. 
Accordingly, clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the Company.

16. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

    For JAIN SONU & ASSOCIATES

    Chartered   Accountants

    Registration No. 324386E

    SONU JAIN

 Place: Kolkata Partner

 Dated: May 18, 2018 (Membership No.060015)
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Annexure B

We have audited the the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting of EAST INDIA SECURITIES LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the fi nancial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal fi nancial controls based on the internal 
control over fi nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the orderly and effi  cient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable fi nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting based on 
our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal fi nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated eff ectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls 
system over fi nancial reporting and their operating eff ectiveness. Our audit of internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eff ectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal fi nancial control over fi nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance 

to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Financial Statements of 
EAST INDIA SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
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with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal fi nancial control over fi nancial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
refl ect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fi nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and  (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the fi nancial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal fi nancial control over fi nancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial 
reporting and such internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporting were operating eff ectively as at 31st March, 2018, based 
on the internal control over fi nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
ICAI.

    For JAIN SONU & ASSOCIATES

    Chartered   Accountants

    Registration No. 324386E

    SONU JAIN

 Place: Kolkata Partner

 Dated: May 18, 2018 (Membership No.060015)
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

 Particulars Note No.
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
1. Shareholders’ funds    

a) Share capital 2 3,66,70,000.00 3,66,70,000.00 
b) Reserves and surplus 3 3,00,33,81,980.37 2,57,43,69,411.65 

   3,04,00,51,980.37 2,61,10,39,411.65 
2. Share application money pending allotment
3. Non-current liabilities

a) Deferred tax liabilities 4 -   62,077.10 
b) Long Term Borrowings  -   -   
c) Other long-term liabilities  -   -   
d) Long-term provisions  -   -   

   -   62,077.10 
4. Current liabilities    

a) Trade Payables 5 1,01,18,25,607.01 21,18,90,469.15 
b) Other current liabilities 6 1,01,76,076.97 1,49,23,824.80 
c) Short Term Borrowings  -   -   
d) Short-term provisions  -   -   

   1,02,20,01,683.98 22,68,14,293.95 
TOTAL  4,06,20,53,664.35 2,83,79,15,782.70 
B. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

a) Fixed assets 7   
(i)   Tangible assets  43,17,088.95 38,07,717.98 
(ii)  Intangible assets  -   -   

b) Non Current Investments 8 67,04,46,682.00 61,76,33,976.82 
c) Long-term loans and advances 9 3,24,59,592.71 2,48,07,879.43 
d) Deferred tax assets 4 3,41,004.59 -   
e) Other Non Current Assets  -   -   

   70,75,64,368.25 64,62,49,574.23 
2. Current assets

a) Inventories 10 1,22,42,84,650.65 61,42,99,353.12 
b) Trade receivables 11 5,31,92,305.39 22,80,28,728.42 
c) Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,05,23,05,070.35 1,32,29,70,769.75 
d) Short-term loans and advances 13 4,04,905.18 69,79,929.77 
e) other current assets 14 2,43,02,364.53 1,93,87,427.41 

   3,35,44,89,296.10 2,19,16,66,208.47 
TOTAL 4,06,20,53,664.35 2,83,79,15,782.70 

(Amount in `)

Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Refer Note-1)
Notes Mentioned above form an integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of event date attached
For Jain Sonu & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants East India Securities Ltd
FRN: 324386E      

Sonu Jain  Vivek Agarwal Sanjay Kr Shroff 
Partner  Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 060015 DIN: 00768635 DIN: 02610391

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 18, 2018
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Statement of Profi t & Loss Account for the Year Ended on 31st March 2018
(Amount in `)

Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Refer Note-1)
Notes Mentioned above form an integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of event date attached
For Jain Sonu & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants East India Securities Ltd
FRN: 324386E      

Sonu Jain  Vivek Agarwal Sanjay Kr Shroff 
Partner  Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 060015 DIN: 00768635 DIN: 02610391

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 18, 2018

Particulars  Note No.
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2018
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2017

1. Revenue from operations 15         44,86,20,459.75       37,36,54,849.62 

2. Other income 16         17,11,36,807.35         7,13,87,864.28 

3. Total Revenue (1+2)          61,97,57,267.10       44,50,42,713.90 

4. Expenses:    

a) Employee Benefi t Expenses 17           3,70,21,047.00         3,88,04,572.00 

 b) Depreciation and amortization expense 7             26,11,930.63           13,22,150.00 

c) Other Expenses 18 7,03,80,768.44 6,42,86,180.53

Total expenses          11,00,13,746.07       10,44,12,902.53 

5. Profi t Before Exceptional & Extraordinary Items and Tax (4-3)          50,97,43,521.03       34,06,29,811.37 

6. Tax Expense    

a) Current tax  (8,11,34,034.00) (6,30,58,569.00) 

b) Income Tax for Earlier Years  - (1,09,572.49) 

c) Deferred tax                 4,03,081.69                (89,958.07) 

Total Tax Expense            8,07,30,952.31         6,32,58,099.56 

7. Profi t after Tax for the year (5-6)          42,90,12,568.72       27,73,71,711.81 

8. Earning Per Equity Share (FV of ` 10/- Each) 22

a) Basic   116.99 75.64

b) Diluted  116.99 75.64
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Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Refer Note-1)
Notes Mentioned above form an integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of event date attached
For Jain Sonu & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants East India Securities Ltd
FRN-324386E      

Sonu Jain  Vivek Agarwal Sanjay Kr Shroff 
Partner  Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 060015 DIN: 00768635 DIN: 02610391

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 18, 2018

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended on 31st March 2018
(Amount in `)

Particulars For the Year Ended 
31st March 2018

For the Year Ended 
31st March 2017

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Profi t before Tax 50,97,43,521.03 34,06,29,811.37 
Adjustments for:   
Depreciation/amortization                   26,11,930.63                   13,22,150.00 
Interest on Fixed Deposits and Others (16,14,52,180.53) (10,62,03,023.50)
Tax Free Interest                      (73,702.28) (7,47,726.00)
Gain on Sale of Investment (17,11,20,396.16) (7,13,61,164.28)
Dividend Income (12,95,01,347.47) (8,67,94,409.54)
Operating Profi t before Working Capital Changes 5,02,07,825.22 7,68,45,638.05 
Movements in working capital:   
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 79,99,35,137.86 (21,69,44,343.14)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (47,47,747.83) (10,84,337.26)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 1,85,601.24 (94,67,996.88)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances (76,51,713.28)                   11,44,000.00 
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances                   65,75,024.59 (66,57,406.16)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (60,99,85,297.53) 42,40,62,134.50 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 17,48,36,423.03 (68,231,374.41)
Cash Generated from Opertaions 40,93,55,253.30 19,96,66,314.70 
Income Tax Paid (8,15,20,363.90) (5,11,67,846.37)
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operating Activities 32,78,34,889.40 14,84,98,468.33 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
Purchase of Fixed Assets (31,21,301.60) (21,58,520.10)
Sale of Investment 20,74,91,032.35 11,12,87,844.00 
Purchase of Investment (8,91,83,341.37) (5,00,00,000.00)
Interest on Debentures   
Tax Free Interest                        73,702.28 7,47,726.00 
Dividend Income 12,95,01,347.47 8,67,94,409.54 
Interest on Fixed Deposits and Others 15,67,37,972.07 11,21,71,978.07 
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Investing Activities 40,14,99,411.20 25,88,43,437.51 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  - -
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalent 72,93,34,300.60 40,73,41,905.84 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet:   
Cash and Cash Equivalent- Opening Balance (Refer Note-12) 1,32,29,70,769.75 91,56,28,863.91 
Cash and Cash Equivalent- Closing Balance(Refer Note-12) 2,05,23,05,070.35 1,32,29,70,769.75 
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalent 72,93,34,300.60 40,73,41,905.84 
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE-1: SINGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CORPORATE INFORMATION

East India Securities Ltd was incorporated in the year 1995 and it is engaged in stock broking and other fi nancial market 
activities. It is one the oldest depository participants of India. The Company off ers complete spectrum of fi nancial services 
including trading in stock exchanges in all segments, demat account of NSDL and CDSL, Clearing services, mutual fund 
services, fi xed income, bonds, etc. The shares of company are listed on SME Platform of BSE Ltd.

1.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of Financial Statements: 

 The fi nancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’) to comply with the Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The fi nancial 
statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted 
in the preparation of the fi nancial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year.

1.2  Use of Estimates:

 The preparation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect amounts 
in the fi nancial statements and reported notes thereto. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation 
of fi nancial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could diff er from these estimates. Diff erences between 
the actual result and estimates are recognized in periods in which the results are known/ materialized. 

1.3 Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of cash fl ow statement)

 Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition) highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignifi cant risk of changes in value.

1.4 Cash Flow Statement

 Cash fl ows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profi t / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 
for the eff ects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 
The cash fl ows from operating, investing and fi nancing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available 
information.

1.5 Fixed Assets:

 Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 
The cost of an asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working 
condition for its intended use. Expenditure on additions, improvements and renewals is capitalized and expenditure for 
maintenance and repairs is charged to profi t and loss account.

1.6 Depreciation:

 Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is put to use. As per the requirement of 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful lives of the respective fi xed assets which 
are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II of the Act for calculating the depreciation.

1.7 Valuation of Inventories:

 Inventories or stock in trade are valued at lower of cost and market value. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the 
normal course of business in bringing such stock to their location and conditions and has been determined following 
the cost formula on FIFO basis. Closing stock of shares include shares pledged with stock exchanges as margin and does 
not include stock held on behalf of clients/constituents.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

1.8 Valuation of Investments:

 i. Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classifi ed as current 
investments. All other investments are classifi ed as long term investments.

 ii. Current Investments are carried at lower of cost and fair market value determined on an individual investment basis.

 iii. Long-term investments are carried at cost unless there is diminution, other then temporary, in their value. 
Diminution is considered other than temporary based on criteria that include the extent to which cost exceeds the 
market value, the duration of the market decline and the fi nancial health and specifi c prospects of the issuer.

1.9 Revenue Recognition:

 i. Revenue from broking activities for capital market is accounted for on the trade date of transaction.

 ii. Revenue on account of trading in securities, MFs, Bonds and other fi nancial securities is recognized on the basis of 
each trade executed at the stock exchange during the fi nancial year.

 iii. In respect of derivatives, the profi t and loss is accounted for on marked to market basis on the closure of each trade.

 iv. Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

 v.  Depository Income has been accounted for on cash basis

 vi.  Revenue from management and advisory services is recognized for when the rendering of services under a contract 
is completed or substantially completed.

 vii.  Dividend is accounted for as income in year of receipt

 viii. In respect of other heads of income accrual basis of accounting is followed.

 ix. Revenue excludes taxes and other recoverable taxes.

1.10 Employee Benefi ts:

 All employee benefi ts payable within twelve months of rendering of services are classifi ed as short term benefi ts. 
Benefi ts include salaries, wages, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay, etc. and are recognized in the period in which the 
employee renders the related service. Liability on account of encashment of leave, bonus to employee is considered as 
short term compensated expense provided on actual.

 Provident fund and ESI is a defi ned contribution scheme and the contribution what ever required as per law is charged 
to profi t and loss account.

1.11 Earning Per Share

 Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profi t after tax for the year after prior period adjustments 
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

1.12 Taxation & Deferred Tax

 Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 
to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred Income Tax refl ects the impact of current 
year timing diff erences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing diff erences 
of earlier years

 The Deferred Tax for timing diff erences between the book and tax profi t for the year is accounted for using the tax rates 
and laws that have been substantially enacted as of the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognized only to 
the extent that there is reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax asset can be realised. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax 
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they 
can be realized against future taxable profi ts.
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 The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. The Company writes down the 
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 
case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any 
such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, 
that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available.

 At each Balance Sheet date, the Company recognizes the unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has 
become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

1.13 Contingent Liabilities / Provisions

 Contingent liabilities are not provided in the accounts and are disclosed separately in notes on accounts.

1.14 Impairment of Assets

 An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with Accounting Standard 28 on Impairment of Assets when at the 
balance sheet date there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the assets, or where applicable the 
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the asset’s net selling 
price and value in use).

NOTE-2: SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars
As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Number of Shares Amount (`) Number of Shares Amount (`)

a) Authorized: Equity Shares of ` 10/- Each 50,00,000 5,00,00,000 50,00,000 5,00,00,000

b) Issued Subscribed & Paid Up Equity Shares 
of `10/- Each

36,67,000 3,66,70,000 36,67,000 3,66,70,000

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Notes:

(ii) Rights attached to the Equity Shares

 The Company has issued only one class of equity share having a face value of `10/- per share. The holder of each equity 
share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 
entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after settling the dues of preferential and other creditors as per 
priority. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particulars
Equity Shares

Number Amount (`)

Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 3667000 36670000

Shares Issued during the year - -

Shares bought Back during the year - -

Shares Outstanding at the end of the Year 3667000 36670000
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NOTE-2: SHARE CAPITAL (Contd.)

(iii) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % of Equity share Capital:

 As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received 
from shareholders regarding benefi cial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and benefi cial ownership 
of shares as at the balance sheet date.

(iv) The company has not reserved any shares for issue under any option and contracts/commitments

(v) The company has neither issued any bonus shares nor have bought back its shares in last fi ve years

(vi) The company has not forfeited any shares and there is no unpaid calls on any class of shares.

Class of Share/Names of Shareholder
As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Number of Shares
% Holding in  That 

class of Shares
Number of Shares

% Holding in  That 
class of Shares

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each

LAKSHMENDRA KUMAR AGARWAL 737940 20.12 1566900 42.73

VIVEK AGARWAL 42340 1.15 1472100 40.14

KUSUM AGARWAL 526880 14.37 - -

ADYA AGARWAL 488880 13.33 - -

UMA SHANKAR AGARWAL 325960 8.89 - -

KAMNA CREDITS AND PROMOTERS PVT LTD 207360 5.65 - -

NOTE-3: RESERVE & SURPLUS

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

a) Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance 4,93,40,000.00 4,93,40,000.00

Add: During the Year 0.00 0.00

Less: Premium Utilized During the year 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 4,93,40,000.00 4,93,40,000.00

b) General Reservve

Opening Balance 157,25,00,000.00 152,25,00,000.00

Add: Transfer During the Year 30,00,00,000.00 5,00,00,000.00

Less: Written Back During the Year 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 187,25,00,000.00 157,25,00,000.00

c) Surplus

Opening Balance 95,25,29,411.65 71,23,27,699.84

Add: Net Profi t for the Current Year 42,90,12,568.72 27,73,71,711.81

Less: Transfer to General Reserve (30,00,00,000.00) (3,71,70,000.00)

Closing Balance 108,15,41,980.37 95,25,29,411.65

Reserve & Surplus                                                                   Total (a+b+c) 300,33,81,980.37 257,43,69,411.65

(Amount in `)
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NOTE-4: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/ (ASSETS)

Nature of Timing Diff erence
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

On Depreciation

Opening Balance 62,077.10 (27880.97)

Add/(Less) During the Year (4,03,081.69) 89,958.07

Closing Balance (Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) (3,41,004.59) 62,077.10

(Amount in `)

NOTE-6: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

Payable to Stock Exchanges 98,84,795.00 96,64,027.00

Sundry Creditor For Expenses 2,91,281.97 6,24,797.80

Income Tax Payable - 46,35,000.00

Total 1,01,76,076.97 1,49,23,824.80

(Amount in `)

NOTE-5: TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

Margin  Money from Clients & Creditors 101,18,25,607.01 211,890,469.15

Total 101,18,25,607.01 211,890,469.15

(Amount in `)
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NOTE-8: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Note 8.1: Investment has been stated at Cost
Note 8.2: There is no signifi cant Diminution in value of Investments as shown above
Note 8.3: Market value of Quoted Shares as on 31.03.2018 is ` 12,78,07,864/-

Particulars
As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Qty Amount (`) Qty Amount (`)

Non Trade Investments

A) Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments

Gujarat Telephone Cables 100 1,655.00 100 1,655.00

JBMA - - 34098 15,59,944.50

EMAMIINFRA 275000 42,90,000.00 1075000 1,67,70,000.00

MARUTI - - 500 6,46,692.59

JETAIRWAYS - - 14350 36,29,895.77

IOC - - 18000 36,66,378.60

CESC 15000 36,51,965.65 15000 36,51,965.65

TIIL - - 31200 57,51,866.65

LUPIN 16154 1,52,87,176.10 16154 1,52,87,176.10

SPICEJET - - 55000 6,49,400.33

MANNAPURAM - - 67501 9,94,737.75

NOIDATOLL 592081 1,25,72,956.09 592081 1,25,72,956.09

BLUESTAR 12700 17,72,010.00 56700 87,63,730.00

SPECIALITY 10000 13,54,425.30 10000 13,54,425.30

MANUGRAPH 384665 1,21,74,647.25 384665 1,21,74,647.25

TOTAL 5,11,04,835.39 8,74,75,471.58

B) Investment in Debt Mutual Funds

HDFC MEDIUM TERM OPPORTUNITIES FUND 7311853.851 10,01,58,505.24 7311853.851 10,01,58,505.24

UTI BOND FUND 1351230.836 5,00,00,000.00 1351230.836 5,00,00,000.00

RELIANCE LIQUID FUND –CASH PLAN 92861.381 20,00,00,000.00 92861.381 20,00,00,000.00

RELIANCE SHORT TERM FUND 1183501.982 3,00,00,000.00 1183501.982 3,00,00,000.00

RELIANCE LIQUID FUND-TRESURY PLAN 27150.816 10,00,00,000.00 27150.816 10,00,00,000.00

RELIANCE CORPORATE BOND FUND 4008080.29 5,00,00,000.00 4008080.29 5,00,00,000.00

ICICI PRUDENTIAL LIQUID FUND 400000.40 8,91,83,341.34 -

TOTAL 61,93,41,846.61 53,01,58,505.24

TOTAL INVESTMENTS (A+B) 67,04,46,682.00 61,76,33,976.82

NOTE-9: LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

Security Deposits with Exchanges & Vendors (Unsecured Considered Good) 3,24,59,592.71 24,807,879.43

Total 3,24,59,592.71 24,807,879.43

(Amount in `)
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NOTE-10: INVENTORIES

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

Stock in Trade (Valued at cost or market price whichever is lower)

Government Securities & Bonds 43,42,65,689.53 18,93,13,485.00

Debt Mutual Funds 7,09,39,605.55 27,87,826.16

Equity Mutual Funds & ETFs 20,07,17,280.48 16,50,84,114.99

Quoted Shares 41,86,67,404.10 19,67,95,455.97

Unquoted Shares 6,03,18,471.00 6,03,18,471.00

Warrants 3,93,76,200.00 0.00

Total 122,42,84,650.65 61,42,99,353.12

(Amount in `)

NOTE-12: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 3,43,81,256.85 20,60,69,464.13

Fixed Deposits ( Refer Note-29) 99,71,80,000.00 62,47,45,000.00

Cash in Hand 7,43,813.50 12,03,977.50

Money Market Mutual Funds 102,00,00,000.00 49,09,52,328.12

TOTAL 205,23,05,070.35 132,29,70,769.75

(Amount in `)

NOTE-11: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

A. Trade Receivables outstanding for a period of less than six months from the 
date they were due for payment:

(i) Secured Considered Good 5,12,01,041.69 22,60,41,869.22

TOTAL 5,12,01,041.69 22,60,41,869.22

B. Trade Receivables outstanding for a period of more than six months from the 
date they were due for payment:

(i) Secured Considered Good 18,29,212.27 18,12,490.00

(ii) Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 1,62,051.43 4,97,446.69

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts for Current Year 0.00 (3,23,077.49)

TOTAL 19,91,263.70 19,86,859.20

GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 5,31,92,305.39 22,80,28,728.42

(Amount in `)
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NOTE-13: SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

Sundry Advances

Unsecured Considered Good 4,04,905.18 69,79,929.77

TOTAL 4,04,905.18 69,79,929.77

(Amount in `)

NOTE-14: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

Income Tax Refundable 1,34,68,398.20 1,30,82,068.30

Accrued Fixed Deposit Interest 1,04,98,287.57 57,84,079.11

Service Tax/GST Credit 3,35,678.76 5,21,280.00

TOTAL 2,43,02,364.53 1,93,87,427.41

(Amount in `)

NOTE-15: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2018
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2017

Income from Securities Transaction 28,04,45,827.37 23,78,16,728.39

Interest Income 16,14,52,180.53 10,62,03,023.50

Dividend Income 12,95,01,347.47 8,67,94,409.54

Interest Tax Free 73,702.28 7,47,726.00

Less: Exchange Charges Directly Associated with revenue (12,28,52,597.90) (5,79,07,037.81)

TOTAL 44,86,20,459.75 37,36,54,849.62

(Amount in `)

NOTE-16: OTHER INCOME

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2018
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2017

Net Gain on Sale of Investments 17,11,20,396.16 7,13,61,164.28

Other Non Operating Income 16,411.19 26,700.00

TOTAL 17,11,36,807.35 7,13,87,864.28

(Amount in `)
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NOTE-17: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2018
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2017

Salaries, wages & Bonus 3,69,14,803.00 3,87,30,689.00

Contribution to Provident Fund 60,545.00 55,268.00

Contribution to ESI 20,163.00 18,615.00

Staff  Welfare 25,536.00 0.00

TOTAL 3,70,21,047.00 3,88,04,572.00

(Amount in `)

NOTE-18: ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2018
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2017

A. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Advertisement 1,39,080.00 6,400.00
Bank Charges 17,717.20 29,340.20
Computer Repairs, Maintenance & License Fees 30,26,466.77 16,78,177.30
Conveyance 6,67,425.00 7,93,471.00
Director Salary 3,18,514.00 67,29,039.00
Electricity 8,83,557.10 10,05,275.00
Filing Fees 34,200.00 2,200.00
General Expenses 2,34,749.76 3,21,140.81
Insurance 30,254.00 29,711.00
Internet & Broadband Charges 2,26,013.38 3,02,392.56
Professional Fees 7,19,177.00 12,68,564.00
Magazines & Periodicals 38,948.00 94,326.00
Corporate Social Responsibility 40,00,000.00 47,00,000.00
Motor Car Expenses 3,87,820.00 4,88,966.00
Membership & Subscription - 3,47,750.00
Offi  ce Canteen Expenses 5,98,167.50 8,14,844.17
Offi  ce Expenses 7,83,813.71 5,93,840.00
Offi  ce Repairs & Maintenance 11,58,168.00 14,40,012.00
Photocopying 70,925.56 1,28,881.00
Postage & Courier 6,21,844.30 10,58,527.07
Printing & Stationary 5,89,793.20 9,50,537.50
Rates & Taxes 34,211.00 55,447.75
Sales Promotion Expenses 17,28,848.30 18,68,804.15
Rent 43,79,164.00 30,35,527.00
Telecommunications 11,20,072.27 14,70,665.26
Tour Expenses 7,99,388.37 7,54,764.95
Listing Fees 3,37,364.00 -
Bad & Doubtful Debts - 3,23,077.49
Audit Fees to Statutory Auditors 40,250.00 40,250.00

TOTAL 2,29,85,932.42 3,03,32,131.21

(Amount in `)
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NOTE-18: ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.)

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2018
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2017

B. DIRECT EXPENSES

Commission 1,73,52,524.52 91,13,950.00

SEBI Fees 68,28,210.35 88,16,669.00

Research Expenses 29,92,822.86 45,61,406.44

Leased Line & ISDN Charges 46,20,968.57 31,11,195.64

Trade Charges 1,13,40,765.23 19,25,574.56

Bank Guarantee Charges 6,29,994.00 19,83,627.50

Settlement Fees to Depositories 29,72,202.10 29,99,679.22

DP Stamp Paper Expenses 39,180.00 4,361.00

Printing & Stationary- Depository 2,16,876.00 4,83,185.00

Postage & Courier-Depository 2,71,551.00 5,70,381.00

Staff  Training Expenses 21,367.39 1,81,349.96

Delivery & Demat Books 1,08,374.00 2,02,670.00

TOTAL 4,73,94,836.02 3,39,54,049.32
GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 7,03,80,768.44 6,42,86,180.53

(Amount in `)

Note: Payment to statutory auditor is towards audit fees and tax audit fees

NOTE-19: CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account and not provided for as on 31st March, 2018 - ` NIL 
(31.03.2017-NIL)

NOTE-20: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR
A) Bank Guarantees amounting to ` 6,00,00,000/- (previous year `19,20,00,000/-) given to Exchanges as margin, from 

banks against fi xed deposit and units of mf and bond of ` 3,00,00,000/- (previous year ` 9,10,00,000/-) and counter 
guarantee given by the company.

B) SEBI had passed ad-interim order no. WTM/RKA/ISD/ 162/2014 dated 19.12.2014 in the matter of dealing in “First 
Financial Service Ltd” restraining East India Securities Ltd, among others, from accessing Securities Markets in its 
proprietary capacity. Confi rmatory order was passed by SEBI on 14.06.2016. 

 Now SEBI vide its order dated 02.04.2018 has revoked the interim order against East India Securities Ltd and all the 
restraints therefore have been removed from the company in absence of any adverse fi ndings against the company.

C) Income Tax Assessment order dated 26/08/2016 for AY 2014-15 received by the company with demand of ` 7,45,64,360/-. 
The company has preferred appeal before CIT (Appeals) for additions made. 

NOTE-21: DEFERRED TAX
In accordance with Accounting Standard –22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India the company has accounted for deferred tax during the year. Consequently the Deferred tax Assets for 
the Financial Year 2017-18 ` 4,03,081.69 (Previous Year Deferred tax Liability Rs 89,958.07) has been recorded by crediting to 
Profi t and Loss Account. 
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NOTE-22: EARNING PER SHARE
In accordance with Accounting Standard –20 “Earning per share” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
basic and diluted earning per share are calculated as below:-

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2018
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2017

Net Profi t/(Loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders 42,90,12,568.72 27,73,71,711.81

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 36,67,000 36,67,000

Basic earnings Per Share 116.99 75.64

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS 36,67,000 36,67,000

Diluted earnings Per Share 116.99 75.64

(Amount in `)

NOTE-23: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE WHERE TRANSACTIONS HAVE TAKEN PLACE

Name Nature of Interest/Relation

VIVEK AGARWAL Director

SANJAY KUMAR SHROFF Managing Director

TAPAS KUMAR MAITY Whole Time Director

KUNAL AGARWAL Chief Financial Offi  cer

ANUPAM JAIN Company Secretary

A V COMMERCIAL COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED Group Entities

CHAPAL HOUSING PVT. LTD. Group Entities

CHURAMANI HOUSING PVT LTD Group Entities

EAST INDIA COMMODITIES PVT LTD Group Entities

FINETHICAL TRADING PVT LTD Group Entities

VALLEY DISTRIBUTORS LLP Group Entities

AVANT GARDE RE ENERGY PVT LIMITED Related Entity

AVANT GARDE SOFTWARE PVT LTD Related Entity

DKO TRADING COMPANY LLP Related Entity

MAMTA COMMERCIAL CO PRIVATE LIMITED Related Entity

PRIMAVERA Related Entity

TRACK PARTS CORPORATION Related Entity

DANKUNI ESTATES PVT LTD Related Entity

SPANDAN PROJECTS PVT LTD Related Entity

NISHANT AGENCIES LLP Related Entity

PUJA AGARWAL Relative of Director

LAKSHMENDRA KUMAR AGARWAL & ORS HUF Relative of Director

UMA SHANKAR AGARWAL & ORS HUF Relative of Director

VIKASH AGARWALA & OTHERS (HUF) Relative of Director

VIVEK AGARWAL & OTHERS Relative of Director
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NOTE-23: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE WHERE TRANSACTIONS HAVE TAKEN PLACE (Contd.)

Name Nature of Interest/Relation

LAKSHMENDRA KUMAR AGARWAL Relative of Director

ADYA AGARWAL Relative of Director

KUSUM AGARWAL Relative of Director

MONICA AGARWAL Relative of Director

SUSHILA AGARWAL Relative of Director

UMA SHANKAR AGARWAL Relative of Director

VIKASH AGARWAL Relative of Director

INDRA KUMAR SHROFF Relative of Director

KUSUM DEVI SHROFF Relative of Director

A. Brokerage & Demat Charges Received from Related Parties During FY 2017-18

Name Nature of Interest/Relation  Brokerage & Demat Charges

VIVEK AGARWAL Director        250,636.36 

A V COMMERCIAL COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED Group Entities          26,813.39 

CHAPAL HOUSING PVT. LTD. Group Entities                  47.20 

CHURAMANI HOUSING PVT LTD Group Entities            6,232.63 

EAST INDIA COMMODITIES PVT LTD Group Entities        565,188.88 

FINETHICAL TRADING PVT LTD Group Entities            7,654.96 

VALLEY DISTRIBUTORS LLP Group Entities          79,245.76 

AVANT GARDE RE ENERGY PVT LIMITED Related Entity    12,33,615.14 

AVANT GARDE SOFTWARE PVT LTD Related Entity            2,036.04 

DKO TRADING COMPANY LLP Related Entity          57,925.88 

MAMTA COMMERCIAL CO PRIVATE LIMITED Related Entity            7,802.84 

PRIMAVERA Related Entity    97,95,105.00

PUJA AGARWAL Relative of Director          27,977.40 

LAKSHMENDRA KUMAR AGARWAL & ORS HUF Relative of Director          26,871.16 

UMA SHANKAR AGARWAL & ORS HUF Relative of Director            2,222.04 

VIKASH AGARWALA & OTHERS (HUF) Relative of Director            7,163.57 

VIVEK AGARWAL & OTHERS Relative of Director          50,178.30 

LAKSHMENDRA KUMAR AGARWAL Relative of Director        118,012.98 

ADYA AGARWAL Relative of Director        196,354.05 

KUSUM AGARWAL Relative of Director        680,070.83 

MONICA AGARWAL Relative of Director        261,629.28 

SUSHILA AGARWAL Relative of Director 77,923.47 

UMA SHANKAR AGARWAL Relative of Director        121,197.63 

VIKASH AGARWAL Relative of Director          19,104.36 

INDRA KUMAR SHROFF Relative of Director                162.00 

KUSUM DEVI SHROFF Relative of Director                142.00 
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NOTE-23: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE WHERE TRANSACTIONS HAVE TAKEN PLACE (Contd.)

B. Outstanding Balance in Margin Account towards stock exchange obligation received from Related 
Parties (Trade Payables)

Name Nature of Interest/Relation
 Outstanding Balance 

as on 31.03.2018

AVANT GARDE RE ENERGY PVT LIMITED Related Entity 5,36,44,387.78

PRIMAVERA Related Entity 537,304,249.94

(Amount in `)

C. Salary Payment to Related Parties:

Name Nature of Interest/Relation
Salary Paid During 

FY 2017-18 

SANJAY KUMAR SHROFF Managing Director 95,107.00

TAPAS KUMAR MAITY Whole Time Director 3,09,467.00

(Amount in `)

E. Interest Paid/received:

Name Nature of Interest/Relation
 Interest Received/(Paid) 

during the year 

CHURAMANI HOUSING PVT LTD Group Entities (7,50,000.00)

EAST INDIA COMMODITIES PVT LTD Group Entities 16,84,740.00

FINETHICAL TRADING PVT LTD Group Entities (18,06,921.00)

VALLEY DISTRIBUTORS LLP Group Entities (95,098.00)

DKO TRADING COMPANY LLP Related Entity (1,33,975.00)

PRIMAVERA Related Entity (1,08,56,712.00)

DANKUNU ESTATES PVT LTD Related Entity 71,56,388.00

SPANDAN PROJECTS PVT LTD Related Entity (8,83,085.00)

NISHANT AGENCIES LLP Related Entity (2,95,890.00)

(Amount in `)

D. Rent Paid to Related Parties:

Name Nature of Interest/Relation
Rent Paid During 

FY 2017-18 

AVANT GARDE SOFTWARE PVT LTD Related Entity 1,80,000.00

(Amount in `)
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NOTE-24: DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER MICRO,SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT 
ACT, 2006

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2018
As at 

31st March 2017

(i)
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 
accounting year.

Nil Nil

(ii)
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 
accounting year.

Nil Nil

(iii)
The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day.

Nil Nil

(iv)

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specifi ed under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Nil Nil

(v)
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year.

Nil Nil

(vi)

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 
paid for the purpose of deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Nil Nil

(Amount in `)

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identifi ed on the basis of 
information collected by the Management.

NOTE-25:

The Company’s operations predominantly relate to one segment, viz., broking and fi nancial services. The entire operations 
are organised and managed as one organisational unit with same set of risks and returns. Hence, same is considered as 
one single primary segment. Besides, the Company’s operations are located only in India and hence, separate secondary 
geographical segment information is not disclosed.

NOTE-26:

Various debit and credit balances including sundry debtors, advances and sundry creditors are subject to confi rmation and 
consequential reconciliation there of with individual details.

NOTE-27:
The fi gures for the previous year have been regrouped/ restated wherever necessary to conform to the classifi cation of the 
current year.

NOTE-28:
There was no employee during the year drawing remuneration to the extent as laid down in provisions of The Companies 
Act, 2013.
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NOTE-29:

Particulars
Amount as on 

31st March 2018

Total Fixed Deposit with Banks 99,71,80,000

Out of Above

(i) Fixed Deposit having maturity of less than one year from 31.03.2018 78,69,80,000

(ii) Fixed Deposit having maturity of more than one year from 31.03.2018 21,02,00,000

(iii) Fixed Deposits Lien Marked Against Overdraft and Bank Guarantee 18,56,50,000

(iv) Fixed Deposits Submitted to Stock Exchanges as Margin 81,15,30,000

NOTE-30:

Sundry Debtors include ` 19,91,263.70 dues from parties (last year ` 2,309,936.69) which are outstanding for more than 

six months. In the opinion of management ` 1,62,051.43 (Previous Year ` 497,446.69) is considered to be doubtful. The 

management has further identifi ed ` Nil (Previous year ` 323,077.49) as irrecoverable out of total doubtful debts of 

` 1,62,051.43 ( Previous Year ` 497,446.69) and has written off  in the books of the company as provision for bad and doubtful 

debts.

NOTE-31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance contributions for qualifying employees. Under the 

plans, the Company is required to contribute a specifi ed percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefi ts. The Company 

has recognised ` 60,545/- (Previous year: ` 55,268/-) towards Provident Fund contributions and ` 20,163/- (Previous year: 

` 18615/- ) towards Employee State Insurance contributions in the Statement of Profi t and Loss. The contributions payable 

to these plans by the Company are at the rates specifi ed in the rules of the schemes.

Gratuity

The company has not made any provision for Gratuity. As per management none of its employees had completed minimum 

term of employment hence provisions of Gratuity are not applicable to the company.

NOTE-32: INCOME & EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

The company has no Income & expenditure in foreign currency during current year and previous year.
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NOTE-33: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Note on Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure under Guidance Note on Accounting for Expenditure on Corporate 

Social Responsibility Activities issued by ICAI:

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year:  ` 39,79,636/-.

(b) Amount spent during the year on:

NOTE-34:
Balance of Loans & Advances, Debtors & Creditors are subject to confi rmation and reconciliation

NOTE-35:
Company does not have any interest in Joint Venture

NOTE-36:
The Company has not adopted Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) as it is not applicable to securities listed on SME 

Exchange platform.

Activity Paid in Cash Yet to be Paid In Cash Total

Providing Free Residential Institution to Deprived Children 30,00,000 0 30,00,000

Empowerment of Local poor children by way of education and 
Other Facilities

4,00,000 0 4,00,000

Uplift of deprived and underprivileged by way of Healthcare 
and Education Facilities

6,00,000 0 6,00,000

Total 40,00,000 0 40,00,000

As per our report of event date attached
For Jain Sonu & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants East India Securities Ltd
FRN: 324386E      

Sonu Jain  Vivek Agarwal Sanjay Kr Shroff 
Partner  Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.: 060015 DIN: 00768635 DIN: 02610391

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 18, 2018
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